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tJ Moved ex Original Site 

Mount Prospect is a two-story frame plantation house of late Georgian 
style Although somewhat neglected in recent years, it is still in good 
condition It stands amid the remains of what must have been an impressiv~ 
laid out estate which still includes a nu~ber of significant outbuildings " 
a family graveyard, many large trees and flowering shrubs, and the remains 
of boxwood and flower gardens and an orchardo The house stands in a grove 
of trees, facing west. Arranged to its sides and rear in a square are 
dependencies To the south is a small office, which is rundown it has a 
well-executed molded cornice and substantial brick chimney To the east 
(rear) of the office is a boxwood garden scattered with bulbs, and east of 
the garden is a small family graveyard including the grave of Exum Lewis 
(1771-1839) North of the graveyard, and to the rear of the house across 
an open yard, is a smokehouse of unusually large size reportedly accommo­
dating 10,000 pounds of meat0 North of it, at the corner of the house lot, 
is a barn with open wings, and west of the barn, roughly north of the house, 
is a brick dairy, which has been reworked inside and is almost unrecognizab 
overgrown with ivy and bushes, but which still retains its openwork sawn 
frieze. The area south and southwest of the house is fenced, and there are 
flowers growing wild South of this is an orchard; one account states that 
there was a peach orchard on one side of the house and an apple orchard on 
the other. (In the early nineteenth century, Lewis advertised brandy for 
sale--probably distilled from the products of this orchard.) 

The dwelling itself consists of the two-story main block, which is 
five bays wide and two deep; attached to the northwest part of the rear 
elevation is a two-story addition of nineteenth century vintage, and a 
rather ungainly two-story later addition extending north from this With 
the exception of these additions and a nineteenth century one-story hip~ 
roof porch across the facade of the main block, the eighteenth century 
plantation house is essentially unaltered 

The house, which rests on a cellar of brick latd in English bond, is 
covered with apparently original weatherboards with a molded edge of un­
usually complex profile Consistent throughout are windows set in molded 
frames with narrow molded sills; those at the first level have nine-over­
nine sash and those at the second, nine-aver-six Small four-pane windows 
occur in the gables, and the front first-story north end window has been 
replaced with a smaller one with four-aver-four sash The central front 
entrance has a single door with six raised panels, which is woodgrained. 
It is set in a heavy molded architrave, and _aQov~ is a fanlight framed by a 
heavy molding Each end of the facade is defined by fluted corner posts 
which carry a heavy molded cornice that returns slightly into the gable ends 
Beneath the cornice is a course of unusual sawn bracket-like modillionse 
The same treatment occurs on the rear facade, the lower part of which is 
covered by a hip-roof porch in the L formed by the main block and the 
nineteenth century addition 

Centered on each end elevation is a large double-shoulder chimney of 
brick. That on the south end has steep paved shoulders and is of an 
irregular combination of Flemish and common bond~ That on the north is 
extremely wide serving two corner fireplaces. It has paved shoulders and 
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it is laid in common bond--varying from one-to-three to one-to-five 

The interior follows a "Quaker" plan--one large room to the south and 
two small ones to the north, the latter served by corner fireplaces The 
enclosed stair opens from the great (south) room just inside the front door., 
a~j es ear along the ition through the smaller rooms to the 

iIlino alteracions Walls are plastered above a t-paneled wainscot with 
Georgian moldings, a simple chair rail, and a baseboard that is the lower 
rail of the paneling The chair rail serves as window sills beneath 

each made of one wide board, run the lengths 

~=7~=~2~ ~ ·~:S ~~ci~aced c~ac ~dny of thew retained locks 9 but few 
or these--or any other early hard~vare--remain now. The door that closes off 
the stair is a batten door hung with rising butt-plate hingesa 

The great room is distinguished from the others by somewhat more elaborate 
finish. It is dominated by a large, vernacular Georgian mantel of curious ~. 

design. A square fire opening is flanked by very wide fluted pilaster strips 
which rise from well-articulated bases (also fluted), and continue upward to 
flank a frieze with two flat panels separated by a vertical fluted member. 
The rails above and below the panels are unfluted, and are visually extended 
horizontally by a plain space interrupting the fluting of the pilastersm The I 
mantel terminates with a heavy molded cornice shelf 1I augmented by a scalloped., 
band and a course of gouged acute triangles a 

There is a heavy molded cornice in this room, which does not recur in 
the other roomsQ The arrangement of the front entrance and the entry to the 
stair is unusual. The exterior treatment of the door and fanlight are 
repeated, and partition wall and door casing of the stair entry interrupt the 
molding around the fanlight, with the stair entry casing having only three 
sides, its lintel element terminating at the base of the fanlight molding. 

The two north rooms, served by the large single chimney, both have 
corner fireplaces. That in the rear room is a smaller, simpler version of 
the large one in the great room, with the same oddly-spaced fluting That 
in the front room is simpler yet, with a single-panel frieze above a square 
fire opening, with a molding framing the mantel but stopping where it inter­
sects the molded chair rail of the wainscoto 

The enclosed stair is finished 'with wide flush boards--horizontally 
placed halfway up, vertically above that The stair well is protected by a 
simple balustrade with a chamfered post square in section, and a molded hand­
rail carried on balusters rectangular in section There are two second-floor 
rooms in the main block, which repeat the flat-paneled wainscot but have 
mantels of apparently mid-nineteenth century design That in the north room 
is a plain Greek Revival one, that in the south (evidently of the same era) 
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has applied urns on the pilasters and frieze panels with spearhead designs 
of slightly Gothic charactero The attic is plastered The finish of the 
two~story additions is plain and undistinguished a 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Mount Prospect is a handsome Georgian plantation house~ its main 
block essentially unaltered despite additions to the rear It was the 
home of Exum Lewis, Jr , an active and influential citizen of Edgecombe 
County--postmaster, storekeeper, mill-owner, and planter In 1815 Lewis 
played host at Mount Prospect to the noted Methodist pioneer Francis 
Asbury. The large frame house, notable for its HQuaketH~plan and fine 
traditional finish inside and out, stands in a pleasant setting amid a 
group of outbuildings, along with a family cemetery, boxwood garden, and 
an orchard .. 

Exum Lewis, Jr , was one of nine children of Colonel Exum Lewis, a 
Revolutionary soldier and early settler of Edgecombe County. Although 
Colonel Lewis was himself a large landholder, his will--probated in August 
l796--excluded his namesake from sharing in his wealth of real estate 
Colonel Lewis's son Green was devised a 420-acre plantation which included 
his father's homeplace. The remainder of the dead soldier's landholdings 
was divided between his sons Thomas and Bartholemew, with Exum, Jr., re­
ceiving only money, debts due the estate, and the stock in trade of a 
store operated by the elder Lewis at the time of his death In addition, 
the will provided that Exum Lewis, Jr , should maintain the store as a 
going concern until his brother Edwin should attain the age of twenty, at 
which time the accumulated earnings of the store were to be divided equally 
between themo 

Soon after receiving this inheritance, Exum Lewis, Jr., began acquirin~ 
large tracts of Edgecombe County land lying on both sides of Swift Creek, 
near the White Oak Swamp. It is unclear as to which of these adjoining 
tracts included the mansion house later to be called "Mount Prospect," but 
it is likely that Lewis and John Williams purchased the homeplace tract 
from Etheldred Williams in December, 1796, for "six hundred Silver dollars I 

This tract, comprised of 221 acres lying on the north side of Swift Creek, 
had descended to Etheldred Williams from his father, James Williams, Sr., 
who had resided there until his death in 1789 James Williams, Sr , had 
in turn acquired the tract in 1772 from Benjamin Williams, for the sum of 
"ten Pounds Current money of this Province .. " The wide disparity in selling 
prices between 1772 and 1796 suggests that the dwelling house was built 
either by Etheldred Williams or his father James Williams, Sr., sometime 
during this period from stylistic evidence, either Williams or Lewis could 

have built the late Georgian house 
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In August 1797, John Williams conveyed his ,half of the 22l-acre tract 
to Exum Lewis, Jr , who paid "three hundred & . silver dollars" for it 
During the ensuing twenty-three year period, Lewis acquired four additional 
tracts adjoining the former Etheldred Williams property The aggregate of 
the five tracts, totaling 905 acres, eventually came to be called "Mount 
Prospecta" 

At the time of his father's death in 1796, Exum Lewis, Jr , was twenty­
five years old He later married Ann Harrison of Virginia and became the 
father of eight children He apparently took an immediate and active interest 
in the store formerly owned by his father At least as early as 1803, Lewis-,­
in partnership with Horatio Gates Clinch--operated the store under the firm ~', 
name of Lewis & Clinch Lewis's brother Edwin, who was scheduled to receive:, 
one-half of the accumulated profits of the store upon reaching the age of 
twenty, is said to have moved to Baldwin County, Alabama, in 1803 and to 
have died there in 1819 

In addition to running the store, Lewis also entered the milling businesso 
A contemporary, writing to the editors of The Star (Raleigh) in 1812, noted 
that 

some valuable Mills have lately been erected on /Swift, Creek! 
by Mr E Lewis about 12 miles from Tarboro It-Lthe cree~/ has lately 
been cleared out up to the mills for the passage of considerable boats 
Near this place is Mount Prospect the seat of Mr. Lewis, who has kept 
a store here for several years, & is a place of considerable trade 

In February, 1812, Lewis was appointed chairman of the Edgecombe County 
Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions, a position he was to fill "with honor to 
himself and advantage to the community.. II until February, 1819 At about 
this same time, he purchased an advertisement in a Raleigh newspaper for "a 
Man well acquainted with teaching the English Language grammatically, writing, 
and Arithmetick" Lewis pledged that "should any person undertake a school 
at this place /Mount Prospect! calculated to please, he may expect a birth 
Lsi~! for several years" D~spite Lewis's efforts to establish an academy in 
Edgecombe at this early date, it was not until 1820 that Mount Prospect Aca­
demy was established This institution is said to have been a "mixed school 
of importance,1I and to have numbered among its early faculty James Co Cary 
and George Pendleton, both of Virginia@ It is uncertain how long the academy 
remained in existence after 1820 

Lewis and his family also became identified as staunch Methodists He 
is said to have been an "active agent in dividing the Church, when many 
members separated from the Meth Epis Ch & formed the Meth Prot .. Ch. II 
Methodist pioneer Francis Asbury, after dining with Lewis and his family in 
February, 1815, wrote "this favoured pair have been renewed and quickened .. 
The house of their father was amongst the first in former days to receive the 
Methodists, and the children now open their house, and hearts, and hands to 

GPO 921.724 



Form 10·3000 
(July 1969) 

(Number all entries) 

8 B 

them .. " 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

(Continuation Sheet) 

STATE 

COUNTY 

Ed ecombe 
FOR NPS USE ONLY 

ENTRY NUMBER DATE 

In the midst of his other responsibilities, Lewis served as postmaster 
at Mount Prospect from 1819 to at least as late as 1831@ He was also active 
in the manufacture and sale of brandy, the breeding of horses, and the sale 
of real estate. The census of 1820 reveals that Lewis's immediate household 
consisted of fourteen persons.. The 1830 census credits him with the owner­
ship of forty-two slaves .. 

After Lewis's death in August or September, 1839, his executors advertise 
for sale "About 2000 Acres.. This tract has considerable cleared land on it, 
and several settlements with dwelling houses IV Lewis's will provided 
his wife Ann with a life interest in "the land & plantation wheron I now 
live" .... ," with "the balance of my property" g " to be equally divided 
between the whole of my children" II 

Shortly before Mrs .. Lewis's death in November, 1843, Exum Lewis III 
conveyed to his brother William F Lewis his remainder interest in the dower 
tract. In July, 1849, Exum Lewis, Jr. Vs executor sold to William F. Lewis 
five tracts of land "comprising together 896 acres " known as the Mount 
Prospect plan .. " The younger Lewis paid $2,800 for the property" 

In 1872 William F. Lewis and his wife mortgaged the property and 
apparently defaulted, in April, 1880, the tract--now said to comprise 850-
acres--was sold at auction to Richard H. Lewis, the high bidder, for $7,050. 
In February, 1913, Richard Lewis and his wife conveyed the property to He L .. 
Speight and others, who paid $15,000 for the tract. In 1920 Speight and his 
~ife purchased a sole interest in a 347.2-acre portion of the original tract .. 
At Speight's death in 1940, the property passed in fee simple to his widow 
Annie, who in 1956 deeded a 112 8-acre portion (including the homeplace) to 
Joe S. Sugg, the present owner. It is currently used as a tenant houseG 
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Division of Archives and History Raleigh, North 
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Inventories and Accounts of Estates, Record of 
Clerk of Superior Court~ Edgecombe County Courthous , 

Tarboro 
(Tarborough). Advertisements, February l~ May 30 1828; August 

, 1829 
Newsome, Albert Ray "Twelve North Carolina Counties in 1810-1811." 

Carolina Historical Review, VI (January, 1929), 67-99 
Raleigh Register, and North Carolina Gazette. Obituary, December 29, 1843 
Tarboro' Press. Advertisement, October 5, 1839 
Turner, J Kelly, and John L. Bridgers, Jr. History of Edgecombe CountY9 

North Carolina. n.p By the Authors, n.d 
Lewis Family Papers and Mount Prospect Papers Southern Historical Collection. 

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill. 
U. S9 Census Office. Fourth Census of the United States: Edgecombe County, 

North Carolina; Fifth Census of the United States: Edgecombe County, 
North Carolina, Population Scheduleso 

Williams, Ruth Smith, and Margarette Glenn Griffin. Bible Records of Early 
.Edgecombe. Rocky Mount: Dixie Letter Service, 1958. 

Tombstone and Census Records of Early Edgecombe. Rocky Mount: 
Letter Service, 19590 
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Edgecombe County Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions Minutes 1800-1813; 

1813-1820, Division of Archives and History Raleigh. 
Edgecombe County Records, Edgecombe County Courthouse Tarboro, 
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LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COO 

DE:FINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 

CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE 

Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds 
NW 36C1 00' 31" 77 0 38 , 33 " 0 

NE 36 0 00' 31" 77 0 38 . 25 " 
SE 36 0 00' 23" 77 0 38 . 25 " 

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: 
10 acres 
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~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--------------------------~~~~~w=~~~~ 
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CITY OR TOWN: STATE 
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~TATE L.iAlSONOFfICERCERTIFICA"JION ::. .... NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICAtiON 

.~~~~~~~~~~~--~~----~~--~----------~ 

As the des ignated State Liaison Officer for the Na­

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 

in the National Register and certify that it has been 

evaluated according to the criteria and procedu res set 

forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 

level of significance of this nomination is: 
N 
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------'C-_ 

Local o 

Name __ ~ ____ ~ ___________ ~~==~=-________ _ 

Title State Historic Preservation 
Officer 

Date 12 September 1974 

I hereby certify that this property is included in the 

N a tiona 1 Re gis ter. 

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation 

Date ~ ____________________________________ __ 
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Keeper of The National Register 

Date ________________________ ___ 
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